
 
 
 

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Westwood Elementary School-1155 Westwood Dr 
May 17, 2023 

5:30 p.m. 
I. Call meeting to order 
  

II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

III. Consider approval of the agenda 
 

IV. Recognition of District Students and Staff 
 

V. Open meeting to floor for fifteen minutes to enable district residents to bring items of general 
concern to the attention of the Board 

 

VI. Consider approval of the minutes of the  April 12, 2023 regular meeting 
 

VII. Consider approval of the Treasurer's Report 
 

VIII. Consider previously paid bills as presented for payment approval 
 

IX. Old Business 
A.   Consider adoption of the following as previously presented: 

•  3155 Fund Balance 
•  5400.01 Equal Educational Opportunities (reviewed-no changes) 
•  5400.9 Enrollment and Placement of Homeless Children and Youth 

X. New Business 
A. Finance Committee Report 

 

B. Curriculum and Policy Committee Report and First Readings 
•  6131 (R) Guidelines for Using West De Pere’s Computer Network and Internet   
•  6131 (R2) District Employee Guidelines for Use of Social Media and Electronic 

Communication 
•  6190 Title I Comparability Policy 
•  9110 School Board Elections 

 

C. Reorganization of Board 

� Election of Officers 

� Appointment of Representatives 

� Acknowledgement of Legal & Audit Firms 

� Official Newspaper Appointment 

� Consider Financial Depositories Appointment 

D. Youth Apprenticeship Program Presentation 

E. Consider Approval of K-6 Math Curriculum/Materials 
 
 
 



 
F. Consider Approval of Vision and Dental Insurance Renewals 

G. Consider Approval of School Fees for the 2023-2024 School Year 

H. Consider 2023-2024 Open Enrollment Applications 

I. Consider Approval of 2023-2024 CESA 7 Contract 

J. Consider Staffing Items 

XI. Reports and Communication 
 
XII. Consider adjourning into closed session as provided under Section 19.85 (1)(c) Wisconsin 

Statutes for the purpose of personnel issues.  Further take notice that pursuant to Section 19.85(2) 
the Board may reconvene in regular session to consider matters discussed in closed session and 
other matters on the agenda. 

 
XIII. Reconvene into open session 
 

XIV. Consider matters discussed in closed session  
 

XV. Adjourn meeting 

NOTICE 
The School District of West De Pere Board meeting will be available in person and via Zoom. 

If you have any need for special accommodations related to accessing the meeting, please contact Stacy Schaetz at  920-337-1393 x8025. 
Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/98441512248?pwd=RWNiTzFFT0FBaXUrV2gxOWoxU2JTUT09 

By Phone:  312-626-6799   Meeting Id:98441512248 Passcode:968804 



 

 

    SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

DISTRICT OFFICE 
APRIL 12, 2023 

5:30 PM 
 

Board members present: Fuss, Van Deurzen, Borley, Van Den Heuvel, Bergner   
Board members excused: None  
  
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 PM by Board President Fuss followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. President Fuss stated that the area news media had been notified of the meeting as required 
by open meeting law and state statutes. 
 
It was moved by Barbara Van Deurzen and seconded by Ryan Van Den Heuvel to accept the agenda.  
Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0    Motion carried. 
 

The Board recognized the following students; High School Senior, Stacy Cloute, who is a member of 
State Champion Ice Bears Hockey Team. The Board congratulated her on her season. Also, 
recognized was High School Senior, Yadiel Marrero-Flore, he was nominated by administration and 
staff to receive the Herb Kohl Student Initiative Scholarship. The Board wished them both good luck 
in all their future endeavors    
 

The meeting was opened to the floor to enable district residents to bring items of general concern to 
the attention of the Board. Joe Bergner [863 Suburban Dr] thanked the staff and Board for educating 
all children and continuing to support excellence in our district. 
 

It was moved by Barbara Van Deurzen and seconded by Scott Borley that the March 15, 2023 regular 
meeting minutes be approved as presented. Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0   Motion carried. 
 

It was moved by Scott Borley and seconded by Joe Bergner that the Treasurer's Report be 
approved.  Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0     Motion carried. 
 

It was moved by Scott Borley and seconded by Joe Bergner that previously paid bills to Vos Electric, 
VDH Electric, and Best Built be approved. Ryan Van Den Heuvel abstained. Voting Yes:  4 Voting 
No: 0   Motion carried. 
 

It was moved by Joe Bergner and seconded by Ryan Van Den Heuvel that previously paid bills be 
approved excluding bills from Vos Electric, VDH Electric, and Best Built. Voting Yes: 5 Voting No: 0    
Motion carried.  
 

Old Business 
It was moved by Joe Bergner and seconded by Barbara Van Deurzen to adopt the following policies as 
previously presented:  

 4114 Medical Examination, T. B. Test, and Pre-Employment Drug Testing 
 4300 Support Staff 
 8220 Board Members 
 8360.1 Public Records Notice to Employees 

Voting Yes:5 Voting No: 0  Motion carried.                                                
New Business 
Committee Chair, Scott Borley gave a verbal update regarding the Finance Committee Meeting.  
 

Committee Chair, Barbara Van Deurzen reviewed the April 6, 2023 Curriculum and Policy Committee 
report. 
 

It was moved by Joe Bergner and seconded by Ryan Van Den Heuvel to approve a Foreign Exchange 
Student at the High School for 2023-2024 school year. Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0     Motion carried. 

It was moved by Scott Borley and seconded by Barbara Van Deurzen to approve the transportation 
contract for the 2023-2024 school year. Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0     Motion carried. 



 

 

It was moved by Joe Bergner and seconded by Barbara Van Deurzen to approve the 4K site 
agreements as presented. Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0     Motion carried. 

It was moved by Scott Borley and seconded by Ryan Van Den Heuvel to approve the memo regarding 
Care Solace as presented. Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0    Motion carried.    

It was moved by Joe Bergner and seconded by Ryan Van Den Heuvel to approve the memo regarding 
an additional Special Education Teacher at Westwood Elementary as presented. Voting Yes:  5 Voting 
No: 0    Motion carried.    

It was moved by Ryan Van Den Heuvel and seconded by Joe Bergner to approve the memo regarding 
an additional Special Education Teacher at the Intermediate/Middle School as presented. Voting Yes:  
5 Voting No: 0    Motion carried.    

The Board established upcoming board meeting dates. 

It was moved by Joe Bergner and seconded by Scott Borley to approve staffing items as presented. 
Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0    Motion carried.   

The Board was presented with various reports and communications:  such as updates, various thank 
you’s, invitations, and calendar items. Discussion Followed. 
 

It was moved by Barbara Van Deurzen and seconded by Joe Bergner at 6:11 PM that the Board 
adjourn into closed session as previously stated. Voting Yes: Van Den Heuvel, Bergner, Borley, Fuss, 
Van Deurzen Voting No: None  Motion carried.  
 

The Board reconvened at 7:37 PM. 
 

It was moved by Scott Borley and seconded by Barbara Van Deurzen to approve the compensation 
increase for all staff at a rate of 6%. Voting Yes:  4 Voting No: 0 Motion carried. 
 

It was moved by Scott Borley and seconded by Ryan Van Den Heuvel at 7:38 PM that the meeting be 
adjourned. Voting Yes:  4 Voting No: 0  Motion carried. 
 
 
 

Barbara Van Deurzen 
Clerk 



�����������	
��	������	����
� ������������������������������������ !"�#�$��$�#�% ��&!#��'�(%���$! ����)%!��#�$����*!#$� ����&�� ��++��+�!�$����#�����#��,��� ��&% ��(�'� ��-������ #%���� ��++��+�!�$��'�,�'��&���+� �� ���� �#���$.$��/�(����0! �1�$���������0!''���,�'�+��(%���$#���''! ��&������� ���'�&% ��(�'� ��2(%���$���$!���&��34��54��$���54��56��+���� $-�7%���(�'� ��#��#��''�(��+��+��'8�!�� $!&!���� ��/�! $�! ���! � �0�(%���$#��  %�''8-��9 ��*+��$�$!� ��&�'� ���� ���&��!'!$8:#� ���#1�$���������#��''�/�! $�! �����#!� �$���&% �-�;% �! ���&���#%��� ���#�0!''�(����$��/! ����  %�''8�(8�$���������� ���++��,����$�$���<  %�'�=��$! �-��<>?@�A>B�525C2D4��EAF97A>B�G23H2DD1�H25G2331��D254233�



�����������	
��	������	����
��������������������	����������
	���	���������������� !"# �"��$�%�!"����&�#�� !���'' ""�(�)*(�(�( �)"�(�"��"���")!+��$�,#�- ( *.��"���/�!"��(0�)" �*�,�!! /���$�#��-�#1�!"0(�*"� *�"���� !"# �"�$�#�)!���*.�)!�"���!"0(�*"��)*��/�*�$ "�$#�'�)""�*()*��2�)*(�"���!"0(�*"3!���*(0�"� !���',)" /���4 "��"���4��$)#���$�"�����*" #��!"0(�*"�/�(15������# .�"��$�"���!"0(�*"�"��/��)(' ""�(�"��!������)*(�"��,)#" � ,)"��$0��1� *��0## �0�)#2����6�0## �0�)#2�!"0(�*"�!�#- ��!2�#��#�)" �*)���#��"��#�,#�.#)'!��#�)�" - " �!�!�)���*�"�/��)/# (.�(���#� ',) #�(�/��)0!���$�)�!"0(�*"3!�!�72�#)��2�#�� . �*2�����#2�*)" �*)���# . *2�)*��!"#12��#��(2��,#�.*)*�12�')# ")���#�,)#�*")��!")"0!2�!�70)���# �*")" �*2�,�1! �)�2�'�*")�2��'�" �*)���#���)#* *.��( !)/ � "18�)*( �),5��9� �(#�*��$���'���!!� *( - (0)�!�)*(�0*)���',)* �(���'���!!�1�0"��:1�0"��*�"� *�"���,�1! �)����0!"�(1��$�)�,)#�*"8.0)#( )*;�#�! ( *.� *�"����������� !"# �"��$�%�!"����&�#��!�)����)-���<0)���)���!!�"��"���!)'��$#��2�),,#�,# )"��,0/� ���(0�)" �*2� *��0( *.���',)#)/���!�#- ��!2�)!�,#�- (�(��"���"��#��� �(#�*�)*(�1�0"��4���#�! (�� *�"���� !"# �"5�=�'���!!��� �(#�*�)*(�1�0"��!�)���*�"�/���#�<0 #�(�"��)""�*(�)�!�,)#)"��!�������#�,#�.#)'�$�#���'���!!��� �(#�*�)*(�!�)���*�"�/���!" .')" >�(�/1�!������,�#!�**��5�������������� !"# �"��$�%�!"����&�#��!�)���,#�- (��),,#�,# )"���(0�)" �*)��!�#- ��!�)*(8�#��,#�.#)'!�$�#�!"0(�*"!�4����)-��/��*� (�*" $ �(�)!��)- *.�)��)*( �),��#�( !)/ � "12�#�.)#(��!!��$��"���*)"0#���#�!�-�# "1��$�"����)*( �),��#�( !)/ � "15�������������� !"# �"��$�%�!"����&�#��!�)���)�!��,#�- (��$�#�"���#�)!�*)/���)���''�()" �*��$�)��!"0(�*"3!�! *��#��1����(�#�� . �0!�/�� �$!�4 "��#�.)#(�"���7)' *)" �*!�)*(��"��#�)�)(�' ���#�<0 #�'�*"!5�?�<0�!"!�$�#�)���''�()" �*!�!�)���/��')(�� *�4# " *.�)*(�),,#�-�(�/1�"����/0 �( *.�,# *� ,)�5�@���''�()" �*!�')1� *��0(�2�/0"�*�"�*���!!)# �1�/��� ' "�(�"�2��7��0! �*��$#�'�,)#" � ,)" �*� *�)*�)�" - "12�)�"�#*)" -��)!! .*'�*"!2�#���)!�(�" '��$#�'�!������"��,)#" � ,)"��� *�#�� . �0!�)�" - " �!2�)*(��,,�#"0* " �!�"��')+��0,�4�#+�' !!�(�(0��"��#�� . �0!��/!�#-)*��!5��@*1�)���''�()" �*!�.#)*"�(�0*(�#�"� !�,�� �1�!�)���/��,#�- (�(�"��!"0(�*"!�4 "��0"�,#�A0( � )����$$��"5��9�',�) *"!�#�.)#( *.�"��� *"�#,#�")" �*��#�),,� �)" �*��$�"� !�,�� �1�!�)���/��#�$�##�(�"��"����� !"# �"�@(' * !"#)"�#�)*(�,#���!!�(� *�)���#()*���4 "���!")/� !��(�,#���(0#�!5��B�" ����$�"� !�,�� �1�)*(� "!�)���',)*1 *.���',�) *"�,#���(0#�!�!�)���/��,0/� !��(�)"�"����/�. ** *.��$��)���!������1�)#� *�"����������� !"# �"��$�%�!"����&�#�3!��$$ � )��*�4!,),�#�)*(��,�!"�(� *��)���!������/0 �( *.� *�"���� !"# �"5�C*�)(( " �*2�)�!"0(�*"�*�*( !�# ' *)" �*�!")"�'�*"��!�)���/�� *��0(�(� *�!"0(�*"�)*(�!")$$��)*(/��+!2���0#!��!����" �*��)*(/��+!�)*(��"��#�,0/� !��(��')"�# )�!�( !"# /0"�(�"��"���,0/� ��(�!�# / *.�!������)�" - " �!�)*(��,,�#"0* " �!5�



�����������	
��	������	����
� ��������������������������	�����������
	���	������ !��"�#�"�$%�&� �''()'*�+,-./0-,0�1232425-��67�89�:'9�+,-./0-,0�!;<,0,-2=32,>5�%/;5��?,2@5�7A9��;4.32,/0�!<50;<502-�/B�'8CD��?,2@5�E79�%,>,@�",FG2-�!.2�/B�'8H:��15.2,/0�IJ:�/B�2G5�"5G3K,@,232,/0�!.2�/B�'8C*�!<5=,.30-�L,2G��M,-3K,@,2,5-�!.2�/B�'88J�70;,>,;43@-�L,2G�M,-3K,@,2,5-��;4.32,/0��!.2�%,>,@�",FG2-�!.2�/B�'88'��N.O,005PQE502/�R/<5@5--��;4.32,/0�!--,-230.5�!.2��%"S11�"�#�"�$%�&� �I''C�Q�124;502�$/0;,-.=,<,032,/0��IJJI�Q�124;502�!;<,--,/0��!MS6?�M&�*T'ITJ:��"�E7�+�M&�*TDJT'*�



�����������	
��	������	����
� ����������
�����	�����������	����������������
���������	���������� �!"��!#���$$�� ��%��&'�$�' ��& '((!#)' �����!#���$$�*!&+��,*!&+�� !+�� �+���)�*$�('���(&$+!�*�!"�'�)'�� +-.&'���' /���$��� .�� �+���0(�!!��1�$+��(+�!"�2�$+�1��3����$�'����'%���4&'���'((�$$�+!�+���$'#��"���5�'))�!)��'+��)&6��(���&('+�! �'$�)�!%�����+!�!+����(������ �' ��*!&+�$��7�!���$����� �+���1�$+��(+8�9��*�$�'���6��)�!%�����$��%�(�$�(!#)'�'6���+!�$��%�(�$�!""�����!+�����(������ �'++� �� .�2�$+�1��3����0(�!!�$5�� (�&�� .�+�' $)!�+'+�! �$��%�(�$5���&('+�! '��$��%�(�$��"!��7��(��+���(������ -*!&+�$�#��+����.�6���+*�(��+���'�,�8.8�$)�(�'����&('+�! 5�9�+���:��)�!.�'##� .5�.�"+���' ��+'�� +���)�!.�'##� ./5�%!('+�! '��' ��+�(� �('����&('+�! �)�!.�'#$��' ��$(�!!�� &+��+�! �)�!.�'#$8�;!��!#���$$�(�����!��*!&+��$�'���6����4&�����+!�'++� ��'�$�)'�'+���$(�!!��!��)�!.�'#�"!���!#���$$�(������ �' ��$�'��� !+�6��$+�.#'+�<���6*�$(�!!��)��$!  ��8�������=>?@=A?��=B=>CD�EC@��CFGHG>>��I=HJ@GD�BDJ��CK?I>��9���1���(+!��!"�0+&�� +�0��%�(�$��'$�6�� ���$�. '+���'$�+���1�$+��(+L$���'�$! �"!���!#���$$��(������ �' ��*!&+�$�' ���9���1�$+��(+�7������$�. '+���'�M(N�  �*OP� +!���'�$! 8�9������$�. '+�����'�$! ��7����� $&���+�'+Q��'/��R!#���$$�(������ �' ��*!&+�$���$��� .�� �+���0(�!!��1�$+��(+�!"�2�$+�1��3����'������� +�"�����6*�$(�!!��)��$!  ���' ��+��!&.��(!!��� '+�! �'(+�%�+��$�7�+��!+����� +�+��$�' ���'.� (��$8��6/��R!#���$$�(������ �' ��*!&+�$�� �!���� 5�' ���'%��'�"&���' ���4&'��!))!�+& �+*�+!�$&((������ �$(�!!�$�� �+���1�$+��(+8��(/��R!#���$$�"'#����$5�(������ �' ��*!&+�$���(��%����&('+�! '��$��%�(�$�"!��7��(��+��*�'�������.�6���' ����"���'�$�+!�!+����'))�!)��'+��$��%�(�$��,�8.85���'�+��('���$��%�(�$/��8���/��9���)'�� +-.&'���' �!"�'��!#���$$�(�����' ��' *�& '((!#)' �����!#���$$�*!&+���$��� "!�#���!"�+�����&('+�! '��' �����'+���!))!�+& �+��$�'%'��'6���+!�+��#�' ��'���)�!%������7�+��#�' � ."&��!))!�+& �+��$�+!�)'�+�(�)'+��� �+�����&('+�! �!"�+���(����-*!&+�8���/��3&6��(� !+�(��!"�+�����&('+�! '����.�+$�!"��!#���$$�(������ �' ��*!&+���$���$$�#� '+����7�����$&(��(������ �' ��*!&+�$���(��%��$��%�(�$�$&(��'$�+���$(�!!�$��5��' ��"'#��*��$���+��$5��#�'��$�+�$5�' ��!+�����!('+�! $�"��4&� +���6*��!7O� (!#��"'#����$8��"/��S �!��#� +���$)&+�$�'���#���'+���� �'((!��' (��7�+����.'����4&���#� +$8��9������$��(!#)��' (��7�+��'���)!��(��$�' ��)�!(��&��$�' ��#���'+�$�� �!��#� +���$)&+�$8��./��9���)'�� +-.&'���' �!"�'��!#���$$�(�����' ��' *�& '((!#)' �����!#���$$�*!&+���$�"&��*��� "!�#���!"�+�' $)!�+'+�! �$��%�(�$�+�'+�#'*�6��'%'��'6���+!�+��#�& ����+����'7�' ��'$$�$+��+��#�� �'((�$$� .�$&(��+�' $)!�+'+�! �$��%�(�$8���/��S $&��$�+���(!!��� '+�! �!"�$��%�(�$�6�+7�� �+���1�$+��(+�' ��!+�����!#���$$�"'#��*��$��%�(��)�!%����$8���/��0+&�� +$�'��� !+�$�.��.'+���! �+���6'$�$�!"�+�����$+'+&$�'$��!#���$$8��T/��3�!.�'#$�"!���!#���$$�$+&�� +$�'���(!!��� '+���7�+��!+����"����'��' ���!('��)�!.�'#$8��U/��9������$�$&))!�+�"!��'('��#�(�$&((�$$5�� (�&�� .�(����+�'((�&'��' ��+�' $�+�! �+!���.�������&('+�! 8�



�����������	
��	������	����
� ��������������������
�����	�����������	����������������
���������	���� ����!"##"���$����%$�&!&����'���!&%&##��("%���)���*�(��+,-.�/�,01-2-33�4,526�07�809:,�3--;3�-.70221-.:�5.�:,-�<4,002�=53:754:�0>�+-3:�=-�?-7-@��:,-3-�A704-697-3�3,/22�B-�>0220C-6D��E,-�,01-2-33�4,526F3�A/7-.:GH9/765/.�07�/.8�9./4401A/.5-6�,01-2-33�809:,�3,/22�B-�/6I53-6��0>�:,-57�4,054-�0>�34,0023 �E,-�,01-2-33�4,526G809:,�3,/22�B-�/220C-6�:0�-5:,-7�40.:5.9-�:,-57��-694/:50.�5.�:,-�34,002�0>�075H5.�>07�:,-�697/:50.�0>�:,-�,01-2-33.-33�07�B-�A2/4-6�5.�:,-��34,002�:,/:�.0.J,01-2-33�4,5267-.G809:,�C,0�25I-�5.�:,-�/::-.6/.4-�/7-/�5.�C,54,�:,-��4,526G809:,�53�/4:9/228�25I5.H�/7-�-25H5B2-�:0�/::-.6 �<4,002�3-2-4:50.�6-45350.3�3,/22�B-�1/6-��B/3-6�0.�:,-�B-3:�5.:-7-3:�0>�:,-�,01-2-33�4,526G809:, ��K ��L>�:,-�=53:754:�/335H.3�/�,01-2-33�4,526�:0�/�34,002�0:,-7�:,/.�:,-�34,002�0>�075H5.�07�/��34,002�7-M9-3:-6�B8�:,-�A/7-.:GH9/765/.@�:,-�=57-4:07�3,/22�A70I56-�:,-�4,526F3��A/7-.:GH9/765/.�C5:,�/�C75::-.�-NA2/./:50.@�5.42965.H�/�3:/:-1-.:�7-H/765.H�:,-�75H,:�:0��/AA-/2�:,-�34,002�3-2-4:50.�6-45350. �O.�9./4401A/.5-6�,01-2-33�809:,�3,/22�/230�B-��A70I56-6�.0:54-�0>�:,-57�75H,:�:0�/AA-/2�:,-�34,002�3-2-4:50.�6-45350. �<4,002�3-2-4:50.��653A9:-3�3,/22�B-�,/.62-6�/3�09:25.-6�5.�<-4:50.�P�B-20C ��Q ��E,-�,01-2-33�4,526G809:,�3,/22�B-�511-65/:-28�-.7022-6�5.�:,-�/335H.-6�34,002 �E,53�193:��B-�60.-�-I-.�5>�:,-�4,526G809:,�53�9./B2-�:0�A70694-�7-40763�.071/228�7-M957-6�>07��-.70221-.:@�394,�/3�A7-I5093�/4/6-154�7-40763@�1-654/2�7-40763@�A700>�0>�7-356-.48�07��0:,-7�60491-.:/:50. �E,-�-.70225.H�34,002�3,/22�511-65/:-28�40.:/4:�:,-�34,002�2/3:��/::-.6-6�B8�:,-�4,526G809:,�:0�0B:/5.�7-2-I/.:�/4/6-154�/.6�0:,-7�7-40763 ��L>�:,-��4,526G809:,�.--63�:0�0B:/5.�5119.5R/:50.3@�07�5119.5R/:50.�07�1-654/2�7-40763@�:,-��-.70225.H�34,002�3,/22�511-65/:-28�7->-7�:,-�A/7-.:GH9/765/.�07�:,-�9./4401A/.5-6��,01-2-33�809:,�:0�:,-�=57-4:07�0>�<:96-.:�<-7I54-3@�C,0�53�-NA-4:-6�:0�/3353:�5.�0B:/5.5.H��:,-�.-4-33/78�5119.5R/:50.�07�1-654/2�7-40763 ��S ��E,-�,01-2-33�4,526G809:,�3,/22�B-�A2/4-6�5.�/.�/AA70A75/:-�H7/6-�2-I-2�B8�:,-�34,002��A75.45A/2�07�6-35H.--@�935.H�:,-�3/1-�A704-697-3�:,/:�/7-�93-6�>07�A2/45.H�.0.J,01-2-33��4,5267-.�/.6�809:,�/::-.65.H�:,/:�34,002 �T694/:50./2�A70H7/115.H�/.6�3-7I54-3�3,/22�B-��A70I56-6�>07�:,-�4,526G809:,�40.353:-.:�C5:,�2-H/2�7-M957-1-.:3�/.6�-3:/B253,-6�=53:754:��A02545-3�/.6�A704-697-3 ��U ��V.4-�-.7022-6@�,01-2-33�4,5267-.G809:,�3,/22�,/I-�:,-�75H,:3�/.6�A75I52-H-3�0>��.0.J,01-2-33�4,5267-.�/::-.65.H�:,-�34,002�5.�:,-�=53:754:�/.6�3,/22�B-�39BW-4:�:0�:,-��3/1-�34,002�792-3�/.6�7-H92/:50.3 �



�����������	
��	������	����
� ��������������������
�����	�����������	����������������
���������	���� ����!��"��#"#��$����%&�'(&%))*+(,�-./01,+/��23�4�5./01,+�4&./+/�%6+&�/78%%)�/+)+7,.%(�%&�+(&%))*+(,�.(�4�/78%%)9��4 ��:8+�8%*+)+//�78.)5;�<%1,8;�04&+(,=>14&5.4(�/84))�?+�&+3+&&+5�,%�,8+�-.&+7,%&�%3��@,15+(,�@+&6.7+/�A8%�/84))�74&&<�%1,�,8+�5./01,+�&+/%)1,.%(�0&%7+//�%1,).(+5�?<�,8+��-+04&,*+(,�%3�B1?).7�2(/,&17,.%(�4/�+C0+5.,.%1/)<�4/�0%//.?)+�43,+&�&+7+.6.(>��(%,.7+�%3�,8+�5./01,+ ��? ��:8+�8%*+)+//�78.)5�%&�<%1,8�/84))�?+�.**+5.4,+)<�+(&%))+5�.(�,8+�/78%%)�.(�A8.78��,8+�+(&%))*+(,�./�/%1>8,;�0+(5.(>�&+/%)1,.%(�%3�,8+�5./01,+ ��B)47+*+(,�.(�4�/78%%)�/84))�?+�.(�,8+�/,15+(,D/�?+/,�.(,+&+/, ��4 ��:8+�/,15+(,D/�+5174,.%(�*4<�7%(,.(1+�.(�,8+�/78%%)�%&�%&.>.(�3%&�,8+�51&4,.%(�%3�,8+��8%*+)+//(+//�4(5=%&�.(�4(<�74/+�.(�A8.78�4�34*.)<�?+7%*+/�8%*+)+//�?+,A++(�4745+*.7��<+4&/�%&�51&.(>�4(�4745+*.7�<+4&;�%&�3%&�,8+�51&4,.%(�%3�,8+�4745+*.7�<+4&;�.3�,8+�/,15+(,��?+7%*+/�0+&*4(+(,)<�8%1/+5�51&.(>�4(�4745+*.7�<+4& ��? ��:8+�/,15+(,�*4<�+(&%))�.(�4�/78%%)�%,8+&�,84(�(%(E8%*+)+//�/,15+(,/�A8%�).6+�.(�,8+��4,,+(54(7+�4&+4�.(�A8.78�,8+�/,15+(,�./�47,14))<�).6.(>�4&+�+).>.?)+�,%�4,,+(5 ��:8+�/78%%)�%3�%&.>.(�*+4(/�,8+�/78%%)�,84,�,8+�/,15+(,�4,,+(5+5�A8+(�0+&*4(+(,)<�8%1/+5�%&��,8+�/78%%)�.(�A8.78�,8+�/,15+(,�A4/�)4/,�+(&%))+5;�.(7)15.(>�4�0&+/78%%)�4(5�.(7)15.(>�,8+��5+/.>(4,+5�&+7+.6.(>�/78%%)�4,�,8+�(+C,�>&45+�)+6+)�3%&�3++5+&�/78%%)/ ��2(�5+,+&*.(.(>�,8+�?+/,�.(,+&+/,/�%3�,8+�/,15+(,�,%�,8+�+C,+(,�3+4/.?)+;�,8+�/,15+(,�A.))�?+�F+0,��.(�,8+�/78%%)�%3�%&.>.(;�+C7+0,�A8+(�5%.(>�/%�./�7%(,&4&<�,%�,8+�A./8+/�%3�,8+�/,15+(,D/��04&+(,=>14&5.4( �G%&�+C4*0)+;�3%&�,8+�51&4,.%(�%3�,8+�8%*+)+//(+// �@,15+(,E7+(,+&+5�347,%&/��A.))�?+�7%(/.5+&+5;�.(7)15.(>�,8+�.*047,�%3�*%?.).,<�%(�478.+6+*+(,;�+5174,.%(;�8+4),8;�4(5��/43+,< ��2(�,8+�74/+�%3�1(477%*04(.+5�<%1,8;�,8+�)%74)�+5174,.%(�4>+(7<�).4./%(�%&�5+/.>(++�A.))��4//./,�.(�0)47+*+(,�%&�+(&%))*+(,�5+7./.%(/�7%(/.5+&.(>�,8+�&+H1+/,/�%3�/178�1(477%*04(.+5��<%1,8 ��23�,8+�-./,&.7,�5+,+&*.(+/�,84,�.,�./�(%,�.(�,8+�/,15+(,D/�?+/,�.(,+&+/,�,%�4,,+(5�,8+�/78%%)�%3��%&.>.(�%&�,8+�/78%%)�&+H1+/,+5�?<�,8+�04&+(,=>14&5.4(�%&�1(477%*04(.+5�<%1,8;�,8+�-./,&.7,��/84))�0&%6.5+�4�A&.,,+(�+C0)4(4,.%(�%3�,8+�&+4/%(I/J�3%&�.,/�5+,+&*.(4,.%(;�.(�4�*4((+&�4(5��3%&*�1(5+&/,4(54?)+�,%�/178�04&+(,=>14&5.4(�%&�1(477%*04(.+5�<%1,8;�.(7)15.(>�.(3%&*4,.%(��&+>4&5.(>�,8+�&.>8,�,%�400+4) ��- ���K�""L#����:8+�@78%%)�/84))�.**+5.4,+)<�+(&%))�,8+�/,15+(,=<%1,8�+C0+&.+(7.(>�8%*+)+//(+//;�+6+(�.3��,8+�/,15+(,�)47F/�&+H1.&+5�5%71*+(,/;�84/�*.//+5�400).74,.%(�%&�+(&%))*+(,�5+45).(+/;�84/��%1,/,4(5.(>�3++/;�3.(+/;�%&�4?/+(7+/;�%&�400).+/�A.,8%1,�4�04&+(,=>14&5.4( �



�����������	
��	������	����
� ��������������������
�����	�����������	����������������
���������	���� !�"!#$�%!&#'(()�*&+�%!&#'(($!&")�*#!�+!,-&!+�"'�$!*&�*""!&+-&.�/0 ''(�*&+�1*#"-0-1*"-&.��,2((3�-&�/0 ''(�*0"-4-"-!/5��65��
789�7��:��;�/"2+!&"�!<1!#-!&0-&.� '$!(!//&!//�-/�*�#!/-+!&"�-,�" !�/"2+!&"�-/�1!#/'&*((3�1#!/!&"��/'$!= !#!�=-" -&�" !�+-/"#-0"�=-" �*�12#1'/!�"'�#!$*-&�>2"�&'"�&!0!//*#-(3�"'�#!$*-&?��1!#$*&!&"(35�� !�/"2+!&"�/ *((�>!�0'&/-+!#!+�*�#!/-+!&"�= !&�(-4-&.�=-" �*�1*#!&"@.2*#+-*&?��'#�1!#/'&�-&�('0'�1*#!&"-/�&'"�/'(!(3�,'#�/0 ''(�12#1'/!/�'#�,'#�1*#"-0-1*"-'&�-&�!<"#*02##-02(*#��*0"-4-"-!/5�A"2+!&"/�!<1!#-!&0-&.� '$!(!//&!//�= '�+'�&'"�(-4!�=-" �" !-#�1*#!&"@.2*#+-*&��$*3�!&#'((�" !$/!(4!/�-&�/0 ''(5��� !�*++#!//�(-/"!+�'&�" !�!&#'(($!&"�,'#$/�>!0'$!/�1#'',�',�#!/-+!&035�B,�#!/-+!&03�-/��C2!/"-'&!+�>3�" !�D-/"#-0"?�-$$!+-*"!�!&#'(($!&"�=-((�'002#�=-" �,'(('=�21�"'�0'&,-#$��#!/-+!&035��E5����FGHIHJK7��7IL9�78��6*0 �/"2+!&"�!<1!#-!&0-&.� '$!(!//&!//�/ *((�>!�1#'4-+!+�/!#4-0!/�0'$1*#*>(!�"'�/!#4-0!/��',,!#!+�"'�/"*>(3� '2/!+�/"2+!&"/�-&�" !�/0 ''(�/!(!0"!+?�/20 �*/M��N#!/0 ''(�1#'.#*$���#*&/1'#"*"-'&�/!#4-0!/��6+20*"-'&*(�/!#4-0!/�,'#�= -0 �" !�/"2+!&"�$!!"/�!(-.->-(-"3�0#-"!#-*�/20 �*/�6OO�'#�/1!0-*(��!+20*"-'&�1#'.#*$/��P'0*"-'&*(�*&+�"!0 &-0*(�!+20*"-'&�1#'.#*$/��N#'.#*$/�,'#�*"Q#-/R�/"2+!&"/��N#'.#*$/�*&+�0'2#/!/�,'#�.-,"!+�*&+�"*(!&"!+�/"2+!&"/��A0 ''(�&2"#-"-'&�1#'.#*$/���2"'#-&.�1#'.#*$/���-"(!�B�/!#4-0!/��S!,'#!�*&+�*,"!#Q/0 ''(�1#'.#*$/��A2$$!#�/0 ''(�1#'.#*$/��T&(-&!�(!*#&-&.��6<"#*02##-02(*#�*0"-4-"-!/��U5��	IH�8G�I�H�9���H�����V��K��7HK8��;"�" !�#!C2!/"�',�" !�1*#!&"@.2*#+-*&�'#�" !�2&*00'$1*&-!+�3'2" ?�"#*&/1'#"*"-'&�=-((�>!��1#'4-+!+�>3�" !�D-/"#-0"�,'#�" !� '$!(!//�/"2+!&"W/X�"'�*&+�,#'$�/0 ''(�',�'#-.-&�2&"-(�" !�!&+��',�" !�/0 ''(�3!*#�= !&�" !�/"2+!&"�'>"*-&/�1!#$*&!&"� '2/-&.5�N!#$*&!&"� '2/-&.�-/��+!,-&!+�*/�*&3�/-.&!+�(!*/!�'#�('&.Q"!#$�*11#'4!+�(-4-&.�/-"2*"-'&5��T&0!�1!#$*&!&"� '2/-&.�-/�,'2&+?�" !�,*$-(3� */�*�0 '-0!�"'�/"*3�-&�" !�/0 ''(�',�'#-.-&�'#��*""!&+�" !�/0 ''(�-&�" !�*""!&+*&0!�*#!*�= !#!� '2/-&.� */�>!!&�!/"*>(-/ !+5�B,�*�,*$-(3�



�����������	
��	������	����
� ��������������������
�����	�����������	����������������
���������	���� !!"#"�$!�"$%&�'(�$ #�"� !!)�!*�!+','(-�$+%(".!+$%$'!(�/'))�0#�.+!1'2#2�3($')�$ #�#(2�!*�$ %$��,'1#(�"� !!)�&#%+4��5(�$ #��%"#�/ #+#�$ #�"� !!)�!*�!+','(�%(2��3++#($�+#"'2#(�#�%+#�)!�%$#2�'(�2'**#+#($�6!�%)��723�%$'!(%)�8,#(�'#"-�$ #�$/!�"� !!)�2'"$+'�$"�/'))�%,+##�!(�%�9#$ !2�*!+�$+%(".!+$%$'!(�%(2��" %+#��!"$"4��:$32#($"�#;.#+'#(�'(,� !9#)#""(#""�%+#�%3$!9%$'�%))&�#)','0)#�*!+�*+##�"� !!)�9#%)"�*!+�$ #��+#9%'(2#+�!*�$ %$�,'1#(�"� !!)�&#%+4��<4�7(+!))9#($�='".3$#"��5*�$ #�.%+#($>,3%+2'%(�!+�3(%��!9.%('#2�&!3$ �2'".3$#"�$ #�"� !!)�%""',(9#($�2#$#+9'(#2�0&��$ #�='"$+'�$-�$ #�"$32#($�" %))�0#�'99#2'%$#)&�#(+!))#2�'(�$ #�"� !!)�'(�/ '� �#(+!))9#($�'"��"!3, $-�.#(2'(,�+#"!)3$'!(�!*�$ #�2'".3$#�?'(�)32'(,�%))�%1%')%0)#�%..#%)"@4�='".3$#"�" %))�0#��+#"!)1#2�%"�#;.#2'$'!3")&�%"�.!""'0)#4��A #(�%�2'".3$#�%+'"#"�!1#+�"� !!)�.)%�#9#($-�$ #�.%+#($>�%+#,'1#+�!+�3(%��!9.%('#2�&!3$ �� %"�$ #�!..!+$3('$&�$!�$%B#�$ #�*!))!/'(,��!3+"#�!*�%�$'!(C��%4��A'$ �$ #�%""'"$%(�#�!*�$ #�<!9#)#""�6'%'"!(-��!9.)#$#�%�:$32#($�D)%�#9#($�='".3$#�*!+9��%(2�"309'$�'$�$!�$ #�='+#�$!+�!*�:$32#($�:#+1'�#"�*!+�2#$#+9'(%$'!(4�8*$#+�%�2#$#+9'(%$'!(��'"�9%2#-�%��!.&�!*�$ #��!9.)#$#2�E!$'*'�%$'!(�!*�='".3$#�F#"!)3$'!(�*!+9�/'))�0#��.+!1'2#2�$!�$ #�.%+#($>�%+#,'1#+�!+�3(%��!9.%('#2�&!3$ 4��04��G3+$ #+�%..#%)"�" %))�0#�9%2#�'(�$ #�*!+9�!*�%�/+'$$#(�+#H3#"$�*!+�%��!(*#+#(�#�/'$ �$ #��:3.#+'($#(2#($4�I #�:3.#+'($#(2#($�/'))�$ #(�.+!1'2#�%�/+'$$#(�#;.)%(%$'!(�!*�$ #��%..#%)#2�2#�'"'!(�$!�$ #�.%+#($>,3%+2'%(�!+�3(%��!9.%('#2�&!3$ 4���4��I #�.%+#($>,3%+2'%(�!+�3(%��!9.%('#2�&!3$ �$ #(� %"�$ #�+', $�$!�%..#%)�$ #�2#�'"'!(�'(��$ #�*!+9�!*�%�/+'$$#(�+#H3#"$�$!�$ #�J!%+2�!*�723�%$'!(�$!�%22+#""�$ #�9%$$#+4��24��8*$#+�0#'(,�,+%($#2�%� #%+'(,-�$ #�.%+#($>�%+#,'1#+�!+�3(%��!9.%('#2�&!3$ �/'))�0#��%21'"#2-�'(�/+'$'(,-�!*�$ #�J!%+2�!*�723�%$'!(�2#�'"'!(�/'$ '(�*'1#�03"'(#""�2%&"��*!))!/'(,�$ #�(#;$�+#,3)%+�J!%+2�9##$'(,4��#4��I #�.%+#($?"@�!+�,3%+2'%("�!+� !9#)#""�&!3$ �" %))�0#�.+!1'2#2�/'$ �%�/+'$$#(��#;.)%(%$'!(�!*�$ #�='"$+'�$K"�2#�'"'!(�!(�$ #�2'".3$#�%(2�%�(!$'�#�!*�$ #�+', $�$!�%..#%)�$!��$ #�:$%$#�:3.#+'($#(2#($�!*�D30)'��5("$+3�$'!(4�D%+#($">L3%+2'%("�!+�3(%��!9.%('#2��&!3$ "�%+#�%0)#�$!�"##B�"3..!+$�*+!9�$ #�:$%$#�M!!+2'(%$!+�*!+�<!9#)#""�723�%$'!(�%$�$ #��A'"�!("'(�=#.%+$9#($�!*�D30)'��5("$+3�$'!(4��67L86�F7G7F7EM7C�N�O'((#&PQ#($!�<!9#)#""��723�%$'!(��8""'"$%(�#�8�$��8=RDI7=C�S>TU>VW�



 
 
 

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE 
CURRICULUM and POLICY MEETING 

West De Pere District Office-400 Reid St, Suite W 
May 10, 2023 

7:30 a.m. 
 
 
 

 I. Call meeting to order - 7:30 a.m. 
 
 

 II. Curriculum items  
 K-6 Math Curriculum/Materials 

 Amy LaPierre, Director of Curriculum, reviewed the curriculum item 
 

 III. Review the following for Board adoption:  

 3155 Fund Balance 
 5400.01 Equal Educational Opportunities (reviewed-no changes) 
 5400.9 Enrollment and Placement of Homeless Children and Youth 

        Reviewed for Adoption on 5/17/2023 

 IV. Review the following: 

  First Reads: 

 6131 (R) Guidelines for Using West De Pere’s Computer Network and Internet 
 6131 (R2) District Employee Guidelines for use of Social Media and Electronic 

Communication  
 6190 Title I Comparability Policy 
 9110 School Board Elections 

 
Committee discussed recommended revisions   Present for First Reading on 5/17/2023 
 

  V. Next meeting date:  June 15, 2023 
 
 
 

VI. Adjourn meeting-7:49 a.m. 



 SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE  6131 (R) 
 GUIDELINES FOR USING WEST DE PERE’S COMPUTER NETWORK AND INTERNET 

 West De Pere’s computer network and internet access are provided for the benefit of students and 
 staff for academic purposes. Users are responsible for their behavior and communications while 
 using Distric  t  ’  technology. A  Computer Use Acceptance  screen acknowledging adherence to this 
 policy appears on all computers prior to logging on. In addition, all families sign a document 
 acknowledging adherence before being issued a chromebook or being allowed to utilize district 
 technology. The following guidelines have been established so that  devices  they  can be used 
 freely, safely, and efficiently: 

 a.  Respect others.  Use respect for others. 
 b.Use shared resources wisely. Diligent effort must be made to conserve 
 resources. (i.e. frequently delete emails and unused files and turn off unused 
 equipment). 
 c.Use language that is appropriate in the school community. 
 d.Purchase of products or services online is prohibited unless they are for 
 educational purposes and prior approval is received. 
 e.Use of the network for commercial activity, product advertisement, political 
 lobbying, or harassment of students, staff or others  is strictly prohibited  . 

 School devices interact with West De Pere’s network infrastructure in invisible but carefully 
 designed ways. Therefore: 

 a.  No alterations should be made to the hard drives of any school devices or servers: 
 don’t change administrative settings, add or delete programs, change operating 
 systems; and don’t run programs from media (e.g. disks, CD/DVD’s, USB drives  , 
 …  ) without permission of the network system administrators. 

 b.  The use of  non-educational  sites, including but not  limited to, games, internet 
 chats, blogs, wikis, and unmoderated forums is an inappropriate use of computer 
 resources and is not allowed. 

 c.  It is improper and illegal to copy programs, tamper with hardware, alter files, or 
 enter certain areas of West De Pere’s computer network without authorization. 

 d.  Any and all software or internet subscriptions must be approved for compatibility 
 with  the  West De Pere’s computer network before purchasing. 

 e.  Do not disrupt the use of the network (e.g. downloading or uploading files of any 
 type including, but not limited to, streaming music, video, or applications). 

 f.  No unauthorized access, including so-called ‘hacking’ and other unlawful 
 activities. 

 g.  No unauthorized disclosure, use, and  /or  dissemination  of personal identification 
 regarding minors. 

 h.  Prohibited activity includes, but is not limited to, access to material deemed 
 “obscene”,  “  child pornography”, or “harmful to minors”. 



 SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE  6131 (R) cont’d 
 GUIDELINES FOR USING WEST DE PERE’S COMPUTER NETWORK AND INTERNET 

 i.  Individually assigned devices are to be used by that individual only (staff may not 
 allow students to use staff devices). Users are responsible for damage that may be 
 incurred by another user, as outlined in the device handbook. 

 Consequences of Misuse:  Any user in violation of  this policy will be subject to disciplinary 
 action, which may include, but not limited to restitution for any and all damages, loss of device 
 use privileges, suspension, expulsion, and referral to local authorities for further legal action. 
 Any user denied access due to misuse will be responsible for finding alternatives for completing 
 their tasks. 

 Passwords:  Respect the confidentiality of passwords.  Do not attempt to log on as anyone else. 
 Users will keep all passwords confidential and not accessible to others. Staff will change 
 passwords regularly as required. Change your password or ask to have your password changed 
 when you think someone else may know it, and notify a teacher or administrator if you suspect 
 passwords are being abused. 

 Electronic Communication:  Email/Chat Rooms/Direct  Electronic Messaging  :  The same 
 rules of civility for speaking or writing apply. Before you send a message, read it over to be sure 
 it communicates the content and tone you want the receiver to read. Don’t send unnecessary 
 messages that waste  -  the receiver’s time, and don’t  use up unnecessary paper printing  out  your 
 messages unless you need them for a class. 

 a.  The School District of West De Pere pays for staff email accounts, which are 
 provided for you to conduct your work. Limited  occasional  and brief  use of email 
 for personal reasons is acceptable. 

 b.  District administered student email accounts are provided for students in grades 
 4  -  12 and are to be used only for educational related  purposes. 

 c.  Your email account is not yours.  Your messages  and  account-associated content 
 are property of the school district. The District retains the right to review, audit, 
 intercept, access and disclose all messages created, sent, and received over the 
 email system as necessary. 

 d.  Unacceptable use of the email system would include passing on chain mail, jokes, 
 links to non-educational websites, spam, animations, hoax virus warnings, etc. 

 e.  Chat room access or direct electronic messaging (including instant messaging) is 
 prohibited unless there is a direct educational purpose and approval is granted by 
 a school system administrator. 

 f.  The safety and security of minors must be considered when engaged in any of the 
 above. 



 SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE  6131 (R) cont’d 
 GUIDELINES FOR USING WEST DE PERE’S COMPUTER NETWORK AND INTERNET 

 Privacy:  Privacy is valued and respected in the  School  District of  West De Pere  school district  . 
 However, network and district administrators have the right to examine the  account activity 
 contents of the file server, email server,  and to  track internet usage with security software capable 
 of recording any and all sites visited to maintain system integrity and ensure responsible use of 
 the system. 

 ALL email, internal and external, both sent and received, is recorded on a read-only server 
 accessible for administration purposes. 

 In order to foster independent thought, creativity, and intellectual development, the school will 
 only examine files when there is reason to suspect any activity or material that violates the 
 school’s code of conduct or law. This includes criminal activity  ;  ,  material that is obscene  ;  , 
 material that is violent or actively encourages violent behavior  ;  ,  plagiarism or violation of 
 intellectual rights or copyright laws  ;  ,  activity that  endangers, demeans, threatens, or libels a 
 person or persons  ;  ,  and material that denigrate  s  d  people based on gender, race, ethnicity, 
 disability, religious beliefs, or sexual identity. 

 Software  : 
 a.  The unauthorized installation of software or files is prohibited. 

 1.  Licensing agreements will be upheld for copyrighted software. 
 2.  Privately owned software is prohibited. 

 b.  All software selection, approval, and budgeting must follow established 
 procedures.  Reference chart ‘Schematic for Software 
 Selection/Approval/Budgeting’. 

 Hardware  : 
 a.  Personal hardware, such as printers and monitors, is not acceptable. 

 b.  All hardware selection, approval, and budgeting must follow established 
 procedures. 

 Cyber  -  bullying  : The district’s computer network and  district owned equipment may not be used 
 for the purpose of harassment. All forms of harassment are unacceptable and viewed as a 
 violation of the District’s acceptable use policy and procedures. 

 Cyber  -  bullying includes  ,  harassing, teasing, intimidating,  threatening, or terrorizing another 
 person by sending or posting inappropriate and hurtful email or text messages, digital pictures, or 
 web site postings, including blogs, social networking sites, and any other web tools. 

 Students and community members  ,  who believe they have  been the victims of such misuse of 
 technology, as described in this policy, should print out a copy of the offending material and 
 bring  it  to the attention of a staff member or principal. 



 SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE  6131 (R) cont’d 
 GUIDELINES FOR USING WEST DE PERE’S COMPUTER NETWORK AND INTERNET 

 Use of  Web Tools  : The use of  web tools  any web tool  is considered an extension of your 
 classroom. Therefore, any speech that is considered inappropriate in the classroom is also 
 inappropriate in any web tools. Students are not permitted to create social media pages that 
 represent school sponsored clubs, sports, events, etc. 

 Students using any web tools are expected to act safely by keeping ALL personal information 
 out of their posts. 

 Students using such tools agree to not share their username or password with anyone  other than 
 besides  their teachers and parents. 

 Students who do not abide by these terms and conditions may lose their opportunity to take part 
 in the project and/or be subject to consequences appropriate to misuse. 

 Copyright and Plagiarism  : Users of information must  always document sources, in both formal 
 and informal communications. Email messages may not be quoted or forwarded without the 
 permission of the original sender. 

 Internet Access  :  West De Pere provides access to the  resources on West De Pere’s computer 
 network and on the internet. When used wisely, these resources can enrich and transform 
 learning experiences.  Freedom of access to the wealth  of resources available on the internet 
 outweighs the risks of accessing material that is inappropriate. Internet users must accept their 
 responsibility for this freedom of access. Computer and internet usage will be monitored for 
 compliance. 

 Supervision and Monitoring  : It shall be the responsibility  of all members of the West De Pere 
 School staff to supervise and monitor usage of the computer network and access to the internet at 
 school in accordance with this policy and the Children’s Internet Protection Act. In addition, 
 content filtering will follow a device, even offsite. Procedures for modifying any technology 
 protection measures shall be the responsibility of the Technology Department. 

 Safety  : Parents, students, staff, and administration  should be aware that  :  The School District of 
 West De Pere has no control over the content of the information residing on other computers 
 connected with the internet, or control over the identity of individuals having access to the 
 internet. Parents, students, and the adult community are therefore advised that the internet may 
 contain material that is illegal, defamatory, obscene, profane, inaccurate, abusive or threatening, 
 racial or ethnically offensive, or inappropriate. The administration and staff of West De Pere do 
 not condone or permit the use or viewing of such materials, and persons are prohibited from 
 bringing such material into the school environment. The School District of West De Pere will 
 educate about appropriate online behavior, including interacting with other individuals on social 
 networking websites, in chat rooms, and cyber  bullying  awareness and response. 



 SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE  6131 (R) cont’d 
 GUIDELINES FOR USING WEST DE PERE’S COMPUTER NETWORK AND INTERNET 

 Disclaimers  : 
 a.  The school district cannot guarantee network functionality or accuracy of 

 information. 
 b.  The school district does not guarantee the effectiveness of internet filtering. 

 Student and Parent/Guardian Responsibilities  : All  students using the District’s computer 
 network or accessing the internet through the District’s network must indicate that they and their 
 parent or guardian understand the responsibilities of exercising this access by signing a user 
 agreement, and that failure to follow it may result in loss of their network privileges and possible 
 further disciplinary action. 

 The Acceptable Use Permission and Release Agreement Form  :  Students and their parent(s) 
 and guardian(s) must sign  For students is signed electronically  by the student and their parent or 
 guardian  during the annual registration process. 

 The Acceptable Use Permission and Release Agreement Form  : 
 Staff/volunteers/substitutes/student teachers must sign annually.  For staff/volunteers/substitutes 
 must be: 

 1.  Signed by all staff/volunteers/substitutes/student teachers 
 2.  Kept on file at District Office 

 CIPA (Child Information Protection Act)  definitions of terms  : 
 TECHNOLOGY PROTECTION MEASURE.  The term” technology  protection measure” 
 means a specific technology that blocks or filters internet access to visual depictions that are: 

 1.  OBSCENE  ,  AS THE TERM IS DEFINED IN SECTION 1460 OF  TITLE 18, 
 United States Code; 

 2.  CHILD PORNOGRAPHY  , AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED IN SECTION  2256 
 OF TITLE 18, United States Code; or 

 3.  Harmful to minors 

 HARMFUL TO MINORS.  The term “harmful to minors” means  any picture, image, graphic 
 image file, or other visual depiction that: 

 1.  Taken as a whole and with respect to minors, appeals to a prurient interest in 
 nudity, sex, or excretion; 

 2.  Depicts, describes, or represents, in a patently offensive way with respect to what 
 is suitable for minors, an actual or simulated sexual act or sexual contact, actual or 
 simulated normal or perverted sexual acts, or a lewd exhibition of the genitals; 
 and 

 3.  Taken as a whole lacks serious literary, artistic, political, or scientific value as to 
 minors. 



 SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE  6131 (R) cont’d 
 GUIDELINES FOR USING WEST DE PERE’S COMPUTER NETWORK AND INTERNET 

 SEXUAL ACT; SEXUAL CONTACT.  The terms “sexual act”  and “sexual contract” have the 
 meanings given such terms in section 2246 of title 18,  United States Code. 

 ADOPTED: 1/2/97 
 REVISED: 6/21/01, 5/19/03, 3/15/06, 10/15/08, 4/15/09, 7/10/10, 3/20/12, 5/9/18, 6/6/18, 
 6/27/2022 



 SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE  6131 (R2) 
 DISTRICT EMPLOYEE GUIDELINES FOR USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA AND 

 ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION 

 Philosophy 
 Social media has created a complex online environment that has blurred the lines between 
 professional and recreational communication. Because this confusion of roles has the potential to 
 produce contradictory messages and identities, the School District of West De Pere advocates a 
 dual-identity social networking strategy for  staff  employees  interested in social media for 
 professional purposes. A dual-identity social networking strategy clearly distinguishes 
 recreational social media use from professional social media use by creating separate accounts 
 for each purpose. 
 Therefore, all district-related social networking use must take place on a separate professional 
 account. Likewise, all non-teaching social networking must take place on a separate, recreational 
 social networking account. 

 Recreational Social Media Account 
 Definition 
 A recreational social media account is a profile that is used to network for personal purposes 
 such as keeping in touch with friends creating online photo albums of non-teaching related 
 events, or other personal, social activities. A recreational social media account is not affiliated 
 with the School District of West De Pere in any way. 
 Guidelines  Employees who use social media for personal  purposes shall observe the following 
 principles when communicating through social networking sites: 

 ●  Staff  Employees  may not connect (friend, follow, or  subscribe) to current students with 
 their social accounts.  However, an employee may communicate  with a student using 
 personal social media networks to the extent the employee and student have a family 
 relationship or other type of appropriate relationship which originated outside of the 
 school setting.  For example, an employee may have a relationship with a niece or 
 nephew, a student who is the child of an adult friend, a student who is a friend of the 
 employee’s child, or a member or participant in the same civic, social, recreational, sport 
 or religious organization.  In these instances, employees who choose to connect to current 
 students must understand that they are still considered a mandated reporter in this online 
 environment. 

 ●  Employees shall not post confidential information about students, employees, or school 
 system business. 

 ●  Employees shall not knowingly allow students access to any portions of their personal 
 social networking sites that are not accessible to the general public. For example, any 
 content on a personal social media site that is protected with privacy settings should not 
 be made available to students. 

 ●  Employees shall be professional in all internet postings related to or referencing the 
 school system, students, and other employees. 

 ●  Employees shall not use the school district’s logo or other material of the district as part 
 of a personal social media presence without express written consent from the Board. 



 SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE  6131 (R2) cont’d 
 DISTRICT EMPLOYEE GUIDELINES FOR USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA AND 

 ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION 

 ●  Employees shall not post images of a student or student’s family without permission from 
 the student and the student’s parent or legal guardian. 

 ●  Employees shall not use internet postings to libel or defame the Board, individual Board 
 members, students, or other school employees. 

 ●  Employees shall not use internet postings to harass, bully, or intimidate other employees 
 or students. 

 ●  Employees shall not use internet postings to engage in any other conduct that violates 
 Board policy and administrative procedures or state and federal laws. 

 Professional Social Media Account 
 Definition 
 A professional social media account is a profile that is created for the sole purpose of 
 accomplishing teaching-related tasks such as communicating school-related information to 
 parents and students. A professional social media account is a direct extension of the School 
 District of West De Pere, and thus, the professional profile must adhere to all district guidelines 
 for online publications. 
 Guidelines  Employees who use social media for professional  purposes shall observe the 
 following principles when communicating through social networking sites: 

 ●  Staff  Employees  may connect to current students and  parents only on a professional 
 media account. 

 ○  Staff  Employees  who choose to connect to current students  must understand that 
 they are still considered a mandated reporter in this online environment. 

 ●  All communication between students and parents via the professional social media 
 account  may  shall  be directly related to professional,  school-related business; a 
 professional social media account is an online extension of a district employee. 

 ●  Communication between students and parents needs to be in a medium that can be 
 documented. 

 ○  Documented Communication Tools include, but are not limited to: 
 ■  Wall Posts 
 ■  Discussion Forums 
 ■  Inbox Messages 
 ■  Emails 
 ■  Public Tweets 

 ○  Undocumented Communication Tools include, but are not limited to: 
 ●  Staff  Employees  may create  a Fan Page  an account  for  organizations, clubs, or classes 
 ●  All content posted on school-related  pages  accounts  must adhere to School District of 

 West De Pere guidelines for online publications. 



 SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE  6131 (R2) cont’d 
 DISTRICT EMPLOYEE GUIDELINES FOR USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA AND 

 ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION 

 Electronic Communications 
 All  staff  employee  members’ electronic communications,  including  without limitation  , but not 
 limited to  email and texting, is considered a public  record, regardless of its professional or 
 personal nature, and is subject to disclosure as allowed by law. Further, all  staff  employee 
 members are bound by mandated reporting requirements at all times. 

 Social Media Influencer Presence 
 West De Pere understands that some employees may wish to create social media content that 
 builds a popular following, however content related to the work an employee is doing at school 
 and/or the school building location may not be used for personal gain (e.g., affiliate links, ads, 
 etc). 

 Legal References:  Wisconsin Statute 118.125 
 Federal FERPA Statute 20 U.S.C. Sec 1232g;  34 CFR Part 99 

 ADOPTED: 12/20/11 
 REVISED: 4/18/16, 6/27/2022 



�����������	
��	������	����
� �������	�	���������
�����	����������������������� ��!""��#!$�� �"%���&%�"�''������'%(�)*��+,-.��!"!�/�0)�12�3��4�*%�5�2�&���'%��)*�+,,-6�#748-,98--,(��6�%2��"'2))3�:��%��'%�)*�;��%��:��7����2<����%<�3��2���<&���=>3�=�&%���<�����%��'%�?�����<3<� ��'2���3��<&��?�33������%<%��<&��3)'<3�*�&���%)�>�)$�������$�'����&�@�%3��A��>�)B�'%�<��<�6�?2�'2��*�%<C�&�<��<�?2)3�6�<���<%�3�<�%�')=><�<�3��%)����$�'������&D�>�)$������&��<��<��&)%���'��$�&D�*�&����&����%2���'2<>%��/�"2)�3��<33��'2))3�<%%�&�<&'��<��<���������D&<%����>�)B�'%�<��<���?�%2�&�<& �D�<����<&���6��%<%��<&��3)'<3��*�&���?�33���������%)�>�)$�������$�'���?2�'2��<�������%<&%�<33 �')=><�<�3��%)��<'2�>�)B�'%�<��</��A%����%2���%2���%<%���>)3�' �)*�%2��"'2))3�:��%��'%�)*�;��%�:��7����%)��&�����@�%3��A�����$<3�&' ��<=)&D��'2))3��)��D�<�����<&����3�$�3���?�%2�&�%2�����%��'%���&�>�)$���)&�)*E��-(��@�<'2��6�<�=�&��%�<%)��6�<&����>>)�%����$�'���>���)&&�3��+(��1����'�3�=�=<%���<3��<&���&�%��'%�)&<3���>>3�����:)'�=�&%<%�)&�$���* �&D�')=>3�<&'��?�%2�%2���>)3�' �?�33����=<�&%<�&���<&&�<33 �<&����')�����?�33�����>�<%���)&�<����&&�<3��<�����)'�=�&%�&D�')=>3�<&'�/��@2������')����?�33����<$<�3<�3��*)���"!��)��<���%)�����$��?��>)&�������%/��A%�����&����%))��%2<%��&>����'%<�3��'2<&D����&��&�)33=�&%�)��>���)&&�3�<���D&=�&%��?2�'2�)''����<*%���%2����D�&&�&D�)*�<��'2))3� �<��&����&)%�����&'3�����<��<�*<'%)���&���%��=�&�&D�')=><�<��3�% ��)*����$�'��/���:F7@!:E�-G-9G,H�



�����������	
��	������	����
� �����������������
����	������������������������� �!"�#������!����$ ���%��&"'!�" !������(�'!��&���)�����'��%%��*����%� !�����!��!����+�#���%���%� !"�#����%����#��!����,"�'!�����'��-��"#��./�"%�������� ���-���0����%%�1"#+��!����/�� ���������!%"#�������'� ���%� !"�#�*-�!���'!�!��'!�!�!�'2��������3�3*��'������%� !������3�!���&"'!�" !��!�%��+��������!��3����!�����-���'0�����#!"%�!��"���'�  �''���"'���%-��%� !�������//�"#!��2��1��3�3*��'����!����"4��3�3*���*����������%� !������ ��-���0�1"!��!����5 �/!"�#�����4��-�!�����-���'0�1��#��#%-��#��*�����3�3*���"'��%� !��2��$� ��!��3�������" ��"'�!�� �33�# ���#�!�������!��6�#��-�"#�./�"%2�������3�3*��'��%� !����'��%%0�*������!�7"#+����" �0�!�7���#��'"+#��#���!��������" ����3"#"'!�����*-�!���' ���%��"'!�" !�� %��72��8�9.8�:�,�:�;<�=�$� !"�#�>?@2@>0�>?@2@?0�>?@2@A0�("' �#'"#�$!�!�!�'��.&&�;&B6��<B::�;�8C�D�8&��C� ��E)F:�$��G�##"�,�''HG�'�#�&��#� �?@?A�����*����I�#�&���J�#H$ �!!����%�-� �?@?K��:-�#�I�#�&�#�D��4�%� �?@?L��G������+#��HG�##"�,�''� �?@?M��.&N)��&=�>@H>OHO?��:�IF$�&=�>?H>KHPP0�>?H>QHQA0�>H>MHQO0�QH?>H>A0�LH??H>Q0�LH?QH?@?@0�KH>OH?@?>0�AH?OH?@??�



������������



���������	
������	�����	�������������	���
���	� �������	��	����	 !  	"�	#	$#%&��%'(�$	�)	*+,-	./	&(�	)�%0�%	-(�#$��	1-	*��'�%&��0/	#��	&(�	$%�2���'	3%�#&�%	3%���	4#�	*(#0"�%	�)	*�00�%5�	1-	*��'�%&��0� +#5(	6�'&%�5&	&(#&	�'	#	$#%&	�)	7+81-	(#'	#	'5(���9"#'��	5�#5(	&�	#''�'&	'&����&'	:�&(	1-	� ;�	&(�	 ! <	9	 !  	'5(���	��#%/	-(�#$��	$�#5��	 .=	'&����&'	#��	&(�	3%�#&�%	34	*(#0"�%	$�#5��	<>?	� ;�	&(�	 !  	9	 ! >	'5(���	��#%/	7+81-	$�#5��	<!>@	'&����&'	:�&(	.!.	�0$����%'/	#55���&��A	)�%	B	�)	&(�	A%�:&(	��	&(�	'&#&�	C D(�%�	:�%�	E>?.	1-'	'&#&�9:���	



������������	�
��������������������������������



���������	
���
������������������



���������	
���
������������������



���������	
���
������������������



���������	
���
������������������



�������������	�	�
����	������	������



�������������	�	�
����	������	������



�������������	�	�
����	������	������







���������	�
������������������������������ �!�"��#��$#��%&�'(('#")*�"��!��*�+'*!"#)+"�'*��,�+�$*�+!��$*-�,$*).$+")#�*/��'(('#")*�"��!��0�!"��*�123456�73829�1:524;9�<2;53=83>5;9�?@>3>A29�B>C:8D35@:>�E2A6>:4:FG9�3>H�D:82I����������	�
�����J������K���K������L��L���M����K�����������J�������M����K������N��L�����O�J�������������%&�+$*�P��/#�$"�+'*"�*"�.'#�$�!")-�*"Q!�(�#!'*$���!!$ I�R',��$�!'�$!S�$P')"��"�'*�"���#�$((��+$"�'*!IT
�����J�������������������	�UV���WJ��J������L�������
�����K��L�����������������"�$"��!�'."�*�"���+$!���%&��!�$�+�$*+��"'��0(�#��*+��+$#��#�($"�!�"'�-�"�#,�*��X��"��#�$�!")-�*"�X')�-���S��"'��0(�'#��"���+$#��#�'#��-)+$"�'*�.)#"��#I�Y.�"�� �+�''!��$�-�..�#�*"�-�#�+"�'*�$."�#���/��!+�''���X��!"����+'*!�-�#�"�$"�$�X�*I
Z[�\]̂_̀àb]



����������	
���	���
�	��������������
�����	��������������������� !"#$ ��%&#�%''()#"� (�'#%*#�"!&+$,� -#��.-(('�"%/� (�&#0(& � (� -#+&�1(2�3�4567895:�;<9�:5=>>�?<@5=;=?<58�=9�AB65C�D??@895=;8:C=?�EF�GB@H=9I�JKLMNOP�BQ�5C8�:;CBB>�7<F3�������R����	�����RR���������������ST$�(&"#&� (�2#�#'+,+2'#�U(&�&#'#%�#�"!&+$,� -#��.-(('�"%/V�#W0'(/#&��W!� �0&(*+"#�&#,!'%&'/��.-#"!'#"�-(!&��"!&+$,� -#� +W#�#X.!�#"3�Y !"#$ ��.%$�#%&$�%�-%'U�.&#"+ �0#&� &+W#� #&� ()%&"��,&%"!% +($�&#Z!+&#W#$ �3����	
���	�����[	�\��	���\�	������\��	�]̂�
_���������S %̀$/�0%� �#W0'(/#&��)(&a�)+ -�� !"#$ �� (�.&#% #��.-#"!'#�� -% �%''()�� !"#$ �� (�U!''/�0%& +.+0% #�+$�-+,-��.-(('�'+U#�bcde��W%+$ %+$+$,�#W0'(/W#$ � -&(!,-(! � -#��.-(('�/#%&3
fg�hijklmlni









��������	���
��
��	�����������



��������	���
��
��	�����������



��������	���
��
��	������������������������������������������ �������!���������"������#�



��������	���
��
��	�����������



��������	���
��
��	�����������



��������	���
��
��	�����������
�������������������



��������	���
��
��	�����������





K-6 Math Adoption
School Board Presentation - May 17, 2023



K-6 Math Curriculum Team 
Recommendation

K-6 Math Curriculum Team members indicated overwhelming support at each grade 
level to recommend the math resource adoption of Illustrative Math.



History/Process
● Our district adopted Math Expressions as it’s core curricular resource for 

grades K-5 in the 2011-12 school year.  (Common Core State Standards for math 
had been released in 2010, so a review of resources and new materials were 
necessary.) 

● Wisconsin DPI released new math standards in 2021
● The K-6 Math Curriculum Team completed an investigation of the new 

standards during the 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, examining alignment 
of current resource to new standards

● Math professional development focused on student depth of learning and best 
instructional practices

● Addition of Building Fact Fluency (Graham Fletcher) resource in 2022-23 
school year to assist with development of students’ math fact fluency skills.



History/Process (continued)
● Narrowing of potential new resources to two
● Completion of site visits and professional conversations with local districts 

using each of those two programs
● Planning for professional development needs with new resource



Identified reasons for recommendation of 
Illustrative Math as the core K-6 resource

● Alignment to the 2021 Wisconsin Standards for Mathematics
● Grounded in an inquiry approach, which is best practice for effective mathematics 

instruction to build enduring understanding through engaging content that gets 
students to think more deeply about mathematical content

● Assessment options
● Integrated technology resources
● Teacher’s guides provide support for scope and sequence, pacing, instructional 

strategies, and common vocabulary
● Provides a solid foundation to developing the math skills and methods that will 

support a smooth transition to CPM Math, which is used at grades 7-12. 



Cost
● See provided quote, which includes access to Illustrative Math for 7 years.
● Cost will be covered by existing budgets; no additional funds are requested.



Perspectives from Math Curriculum Team 
Members

● Individuals will share



Thank you for your consideration of our 
request.



 MEMO 
 TO:  Dennis Krueger, Superintendent 

 West De Pere School Board 

 FROM:  Amy LaPierre, Director of Curriculum 

 DATE:   May 4, 2023 

 RE:  K-6 Math Adop�on 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 We request approval to purchase Illustra�ve Math as the new core curriculum for K-6 Mathema�cs. 
 Please reference the a�ached cost breakdown for specific budgetary costs.  The proposed adop�on 
 can be covered with a variety of exis�ng budgets, including the curriculum budget, building allocated 
 math workbook budgets, and previously allocated ESSER funds. 

 This request comes as a culmina�on of two years of work inves�ga�ng the new Wisconsin DPI Math 
 Standards which were released in 2021.    Please reference the provided slide presenta�on for more 
 informa�on about the process we used to do this work. 



��������������	
��������	��������������	����	���������
�������������	�	��
������� �����!��"��������
��!��#$#%&#$#'���!��"�(�	
���)������	��*��#$#%��++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++��,����""��������-	.����	����!	���������!����!��"�������
��
����
��!��#$#%&#$#'����!��"���	
/��!���������
��!��#$#%&#$#'���!��"���	
�	
��	����""������01234567� �844��'9� �:;<��9����
�	
���� �:'$��#���=
	��&'�!�=
	��� �:'<��<�!�=
	��&>�!�=
	��� �:<%��?�!�=
	��&@�!�=
	��� �:<%��*�!�=
	��&;#�!�=
	��� �:?$���!	�.�������	����	���������
�������������	�	��
�



��������������	
��������	��������������������
���
�����
���������������������������
��� ����!�����	��������
��"��#$#%&#$#'���"����(�	
���!������	)�*$��#$#%��++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++��,�	�-��"����	
������������
�	��
�.����	���	�����	���������
�������������������	�������	����
������������
����	������)�	���'�&*#�"��
	���	�����	���������	�������"����"���������
�������/�������0�
�������������	���	.	��	1���2��"��"���3������������"�������1�������	
	��������
��� ������
���	
�������)�45$$67���"	�-�)������������
���
�����
����������



����������	
���
�����	
����������������������������������������� �������!�"���������#$%�&&��%�� �'�(�)*)+��,-./0/1234567-82�9:;<�=70:��>���?�@A�
BCAD��E�������������FA�
G�E
��A	�A�E�D���A����
HB
���AFH�I�J�AEI���	���AEI�����	�K�������LAEE�EJM��N���	��������A�	�E���������A
�?�G���O��P���O�Q��G�E
A�HR�>���FN�F�	������
���E�D�F��J�AG��	�
��F��S�I���
���AF�N
���A�I�
��	
NI�E
	�AEI��@N��I�F�	�
�S�����A
��E	��F	��@�
D��E�F������AEI���
�T�E	M�@�
���E�
���	�����	M��AEI��E�
���J�E��A����GGNE�
HR��UV�W-7667�9-2��X�
��Y
��AEI�Z
��J�AI���D����A@���
��DA
������GGNE�
H�G�G@��	[��F��	�E
A
��E	�A@�N
��
������A����	R�>��	��	�A��SA�NA@����\F����E��������	
NI�E
	R��UV�V]4]̂]=]_�̀/;513=71�V5:a��KE�bF����cZ
��
���dE
��G�I�A
�����������	
�I�A���R>RQRbRLRe����E��M�>���E���JHM�QEJ�E����EJM��b�
M�f�LA
�g�E�J�
R�>��H�I�	F�AH�I�	
NI�E
��A�
D��OM��AI�SA���N	��>QL�A�
�S�
��	������AG����	��
��FA�
���FA
���ER��
NI�E
	���N�I�GAO��
������DE��	
�FhG�
��E�AE�GA
��E	R��ii�j/k/1k�l766m5:nk6��cEI�J�AI��	�A
��	
D��I��Q��G�E
A�H�J�
�
��
AO��A��DA�O�EJ�����I�
��F�
�����������o���E��N	��f�p���A�R�>��	�DA	��A�J��A
�DAH�
��D�AF�NF�
������F�AE
�NE�
��E�	���E��R�

�qW�rk1�l7-s6�W:m.671��?�G���O�P���O��t	
�J�AI��	��F��	�E
�I�
��������E���
�
���AG��H��AEI�����EI	R��9-/72�V1-7����AE
�G����O	��A���A
�
���?�J���������DA	������JE�T�I��E�
����A��H��
A�R�u��v������������w����x��"����y��z�v%z��&��%���������������z��!��z�������(������%������������{��&�|&�����"z����}�"��~���%�!��������z����%z��&�(�������z�����|�����������������%�!���������v����}|���)*))��#{��(���(��~���������&���������!���z���%z�%�&����}�&~���%���%�!!����&�������(���������!����������}���z������z�%z���������{������������!�|���~!��������&��%z��!!����������qV�,:76mk/.k��>���?�J���������p���E	��	��>�AG�@��NJ�
���G��tc��J��I	M���	��S��	�AEI�A��@��ET��A
�
����
A
��G��
��E��bF���R���i��k5�:k5��7:�06�<V:0�/m;�W:m16k1��P�EJ�A
N�A
��E	�
��L�II������������
NI�E
	���C�S�M��LA\M�C��HM�AEI��AH�A������
AO�EJ����	
�F�A����E�
����
�AG��S�E
������
��J�AI��	��A
�
�����GF�
�
��ER��_V�9-m.6��KE�bF����t�
��
���L�II�������������	
�I�A��F��EJ���EO�KN
��AE��R��>���	
NI�E
	�A���D����F�EO�AEI��IAE��I�
���E�J�
�ADAHR�



�����������	�
�����	������������������������������������� ���!������� ����"���#�� $ " �% &�'����$�����(� �!������!����� ��)��#�*�� �+���� ����"� �����(��,�����)� �-��.��( ��)� ������ ��/��0����1�2��1�3�4��5������6��76��4�����5������������8)�����9�����,���((����� ��������� �����(���� ������(�,!���"���������� ������, ��-�����!�������������,������������* +�-���#������,��"�� �#���+/��:��� ���������������9;<=�� !������!*������ ����#�* ���+�8��� ��������/��'�������������� ��>�� ��'!��.+)�>�,������? ��� "�� ����@ *��+�'��� ����������;��$� /��A���!�,��������� ���� $ �� -���(��*��!��������,����-� �+�*��� �����,� ������ ���,�!������"��� *�/��B�11���C�DE��5��<�*��,.�F���.������"� ��������.� �(��������������@ �����'�*-���� ������ ����� ��� -�!��� �!��/��G
HI�J�I���5��K����������"��!���(��!����!�������� ���,�� ������������FL=��M��������,�A���� �� �������A ���?�*��� ���=,�����@���������'����A�$���/���(���� �*�����"���(��#������"�$ ���!�� ��� ,��$�����)����+����.� ��N!�,.�� �.��������> .��?�,��" �/��2G�O�P��Q��'����R"� ���* ���"��!���!�����(� ,��������������� ������������� ��- .��+����S�,�/�'��+�,����� ����,���)����� �,��������(��������,��)� ���T����T�������- .����"�������� ����(�����U���"� ����/��2H�HV361��53�W�X�	3������? +�YZ��)� ��=,��� ������[�"��)�����F� ����(���Z�U�� �����\U)�]Z)8U]�����,��� ������/�

�43���6D�̂��	3��G3������HV3661�_Ẁ�������������,�����+� ���� ��� �����)���� �������� ���"����"� �! ����!���Z�U�,� ����� ���,���������(�������!�����/��a� �! ����������-�������� ��8bZZ��*����?��� +)�? +������������?�,�����F�**�����������=�/�[��-����F����"���, *�!�/���!��������������� $��,�*������������������������S�,��� �������������������������.��������,�*��"�����.�/�������������,�*��������������S�,�������!, ����)�����,����,�!����,�� ���"� ����� ���"������������ ������*��� �+�,� �����*/����������������������� ���,������ +� ���,�� ���� �������(��*/��F!������+)�������*���� ��;� ���*�c��"���,���������(�������!�����/�'������S�,����������*����(�����#���,�����+� �������8���!�����/��'�������,���������������� ���������*����� ����������#��,���������,�� �����,�������Z�UR�Z�d���,�����+� ��-�"���/���������� ��+����� �$������� $��*�������������,�!������"��� ((� ������:����*��� ��� ���?�������=,�������$������� ���������������(+��"���!����������* +��-�� �"������ ����"�* �,��(������S�,��- ������ ����"/��9!���"������!**��)����� �$�����������-�����.��"�������$���������� ����� �� ���� ���,�������������� �� ���������� �!� -���(��* ��(�����!�����/��F!������+)������ ����!�������������� ����S�,�����+� �����N!��������,��,.�������� ����� �� ������ ���������S�,�������*���/��e+��,��������"������� �� ���)���!�����������-�� -������(�,!������������������!�� �,+��(������� �� ���� �����������������!������ ����"/���������� ��+)����,�����!�������$������������(�����!�����������#������,���� ����"��!�������(������,����/��? �+��(���!����!������ ���,� $��"�� ���R����� ����"/���$���������!**��� ����!���"�����,�!�����(�������#���,�����+� ������������#������� +��������$����� ���R����#������,���-+��-!�����"�� ���������������� �� �-!��������� ���� "��,���/��_WV6D��	�
���5��f� �? +��Z�A!��g�!��<� ����,�����9��;������c�A!��R-���(����"�< �����,������9��;�����f� �? +��YR�<�"��=,�����a� �! ����� ����*/��f� �? +���R�;� ���*�c��"���a� �! ����� ���hij�klmnomi�plqqoro�� ��8�*��f� �? +���R�?=�e ���F��,���� ������?=� ���M��*/��f� �? +��dR�?=�F�����F��,�����������<=�� !������!*� ��8bUZ��*/��f� �? +�UYR�s���a� ���;��*�������������<=��@������!��� ��U�*/��f� �t!���]������������;'��a��(��!���"� ���uvw�xyqqoo�zlq{�pl|m}o��f� ��!"!����M���< �����,�����9��;����(��*��UR8��*� ������=� ��F�!-�




